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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Venus lndia Asset- Finance Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited ("the
company") which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025', the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive lncome); the Statement of Cash Flows; and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity the accounting principles generally
accepted in lndia including lndian Accounting Standard ("lnd AS") specified under section 133 of the
Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2025, its profit (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our oplnion on the financial statements.

lnformation Other than the financial statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director's Report including its Annexures, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or othenruise appears to
be materially misstated.

When we read the Director's Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance under SA 720 "The
Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Other lnformation".
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 20'13 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Board of directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
lVlisstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls

a

a Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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a Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Itlateriality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Orde/'). lssued by the Central
Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 20'13, we
give in the "Annexure-A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the order, to
the extent applicable.

2 As required by section 1a3 (3)of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income,
Statement of Change in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. ln our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the lndian Accounting Standards
(lnd AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 3'1,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure 8". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company is not a public
company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act hence provisions of section 1g7 read with
Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the company.
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

i.

ii. The Company did not have any longterm contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the lntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

iv(b). The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

iv(c). Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared and paid any dividend during the year hence compliance
with Section 123 ol the Act is not required.

VI Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has been enabled and operated for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software during the year. Further, for the periods where audit
trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated, we did not come across any instance of
the audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved
by the company as per the statutory requirement.

Place: New Delhi
Date : June 27,2025
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For CHATURVEDI & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

tcAr FRN 302137EtE300286

PANKAJ CHATURVEDI
Partner

Membership No. 091239
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ANNEXURE 'A'TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under'Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirement' section of our
report to the Members of Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited of even date)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible asset. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ii
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(a)

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Property, Plant and
Equipment so as to cover all the assets. As explained to us, physical verification has
been carried out by the Company and no discrepancy was noticed on such verification.
ln our opinion the frequency of verification is reasonable, having regard to the size of the
Company and nature of its business.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no immovable properties are in the name of
the company. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(iXc) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d)

(e)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(ixd) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(iXe) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is in the
business of providing loans. Hence, company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly,
the reporting under Clause 3(iiXa) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of rupees five crore, in aggregate, from banks
and which are secured on the basis of security of current assets. Based on the records
examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly
and half yearly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial
institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

iii (a)

(b)

The Company's principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, provisions stated under
clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

tion and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that the investments made and the
terms and conditions of the grant of loans or advances in the nature of loans, prima facie,
are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. There are no guarantees provided or
security given by the Company during the year.

According to the informa

(c) loans and advances in nature of loans, the schedule of
by the Company.
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iv

vii

across retail finance, consumer finance and corporate finance, the entity-wise details of
the amount, due date for payment and extent of delay (that has been suggested in the
Guidance Note on CARO 2020 issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia
for reporting under this clause) have not been detailed hereunder because it is not
practicable to furnish such details owing to the voluminous nature of data generated in the
normal course of the Company's business Further, except for the instances where there
are delays or defaults in repayment of principal and/or interest and in respect of which the
Company has recognised necessary provisions in accordance with the principles of lndian
Accounting Standards (And AS) and the guidelines issued by The Reserve Bank of lndia
(RBl) for lncome Recognition and Asset Classification (which has been disclosed by the
Company in Note 44 to the financial statements), the parties are repaying the principal
amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest, as applicable.

(d)

(e)

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the details of total amount
overdue for more than ninety days in respect of loans and advances in the nature of
loans, are as follows, and the Company has taken reasonable steps for recovery of the
principal and interest.

No. of cases Principal amount
overdue

lnterest over due Total
Overdue

Remarks, if any

2,250.00 2,250.00

Since the Company's principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(iiiXe) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

1

(0 According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not granted
any loan or advance in the nature of loan repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not, made
investment in, provided any guarantee or security in contravention of the provisions of section
185 of the Companies Act. Further, the company has not entered into any transaction covered
under section 186 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposit within the meaning of the provisions of
sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

vi

(a)

The provisions of sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company
as the Central Government of lndia has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any
of the products/ services of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(vi)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of provident fund, income tax, goods and services tax and any
other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable

I
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(b) rmation and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, there were no outstanding dues in respect of provident fund,
income tax, goods and services tax and any other material statutory dues which as at
March 31,2025 have not been deposited on account of any dispute

According to the info

viii According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transaction in the
books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings to financial institutions, banks,
government and dues to debenture holders or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been
declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or other
lender

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company raised money
by way of term loan during the year have been applied for the purpose for which they
were raised.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we
report that funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long term
purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we
report that the Company has not taken any fund from any entity or person on account of
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

X (a)

(0 According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we
report that the Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate
company. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised
any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) and explanations given to us, the Company has neither
made any preferential allotment nor private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, the
reporting under Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information

xi (a) During the course
out in accordance
to the information
instance of fraud I

year, nor have we

of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
with the generally accepted auditing practices in lndia, and according
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any

by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the
been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books a
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Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13
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reporting under Clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in lndia, and accordin g
to the information and expla nations given to us, the Company has not received wh istle-
blower complaints during th e year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xiXc) of the
Order is not a icable to the Com

xil

(c)

According to the information and explanations
Company. Accordingly, the provision of para 3
Company.

given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the

ns given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanatio

(a)

(b)

..
XVI.

XV

(a)

our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
and nature of its business.

reports of the Company issued till date, for the

According to the information and explanations given
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provision of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

y registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act,

ln our opinion and based on
commensurate with the size

We have considered the internal audit
period under audit.

to us and based on our examination of the

The Company is dul
1 934.

(b) The Company has not conducted
the year without obtaining a valid

non-banking financial / housing finance activities during
Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of lndia

as per the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not appticable to the Company.

xvil

Based on the information and explanations
Company, the Company does not have any
reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is

The Company is not a Core lnvestment Compa
made by the Reserve Bank of lndia. Accordingly,
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

provided by the management of the
CIC within the Group. Accordingty, the
not applicable to the Company.

(c)

(d)

ny (ClC) as defined in the regutations
the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of

The Company has not incurred cash
preceding financial year.

losses in the financial year or in the immediately

xviii There has been no resignation of
reporting under Clause 3(xviii) of the

the statutory auditors during the
Order is not applicable to the Comp

year. Accordingly, the
r?ny.
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xxi

Account as per the provisions of Section 135 the Act read with schedule Vll to the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company

The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of financial
statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this
report.

For CHATURVEDI & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

tcAr FRN 302137E1E300286

t

Place: New Delhi
Date : June 27,2025

PANKAJ CHATURVEDI
Partner

Membership No. 091239
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
(Referred to in paragraph 2(0 under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of
our report to the members of Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited of even date)

Report on the lnternal Financial Gontrols under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of Venus lndia
Asset-Finance Private Limited (the "Company") as of March 31,2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the Financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management and Board of Director's Responsibility for lnternal Financia! Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to Financial
Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor's responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements includedbbtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements, assessing thelisk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectivLness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements] whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to the Financia! Statements

A company' s internal financial control with reference to Financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabil ity of financial reporting and the preparation of
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with genera lly accepted accounting
principles A company's internal financial controlw ith reference to Financial Statements includes those

detail,
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
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accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Financial Statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company, has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2025, based on the internal control with
reference to Financial Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia (lCAl) (the
"Guidance Note").

For CHATURVEDI & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

rcAr FRN 302137EtE300286

t

Place: New Delhi
Date : June 27,2025

PANKAJ CHATURVEDI
Partner

Membership No. 091239
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Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited

Ealance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in { lacs, unless stated otherwise)

ASSErs

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Other Bank Balances

Receivables

Trade receivabes

Other receivabes

Loans

lnvestments

Other Financial Assets

Total Financial Assets

Non-Financial Assets

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Right-of-use Asset

Other Non-Financial Assets

Total Non-Financial Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Equity

Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Payables

-Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises
-Other Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises

Borrowings (other than Debt Securities)

Other Financial Liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

Non-Financial Liabilities

Provislons

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Other Non-Financial Liabilities

Total Non-Financial Liabilities

Equity
Equity Share Capital

Other Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chaturvedi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

lCAl Firm Registration No.; 302137E/E300286

Pankaj Chaturvedi

Partner

Membership No.: 091.239

UDIN:

'iDl 4
Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025

7,27t.il 1,421.85

28,975.50 26,706.67

5

6

Note

1.0

11

72

13

14

15

As at

March 31, 2025

40.81

395.46

23,899.21

3,416.5s

t2.87

As at

March 31,2024

48.51

307.00

22,932.77

r.,836.68

159.84

7

d

9

27,7U.95 25,284.81

643.15

282.01.

52.06

778.79

55.61

541.66

537.00

33.62

227.n
81.69

7.26

7.89

0.16

64.79

3,233.66

42.53
16

1.7

18

11

L9

5,t22.7s

14.08

5,1/t5.98 3,341.13

996.53

76.47

2,019.30

18.50

1,013.01 2,037.80

20

27

9,272.O7

13,545.54

9,212.O7

12,055.68

22,877.61 21,327.74

28,976.@ 26,706.67

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited

Gaurav Goel

Director
DIN No.00076111

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025

--4/L

CEO cum Director

DIN No.03551618

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025
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Company Secretary

Membership No. A34258
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Venus lndia fuset-Finance Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in t lacs, unless stated otherwise)

lncome

lnterest lncome

Fees and Commission lncome

Net Gain on Falr Value Changes

Net Gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost

Revenue from Operations

Other lncome

Total lncome

Expenses

Finance Costs

Employee Benefits Expenses

lmpairment on Financial lnstruments

Depreciation Expenses

Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit before Tax

Tax expenses

Current Tax (net of previous year tax)

Earlier year tax

Deferred Tax

Profit for the year

other Comprehensive lncome/(Expensel

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Remeasurement Gain / (Loss) of Defined Benefit PIan

lncome Tax relating to above item

Total Other Comprehensive lncome/(Loss) for the Year (Net of Tax)

Total Comprehensive lncome for the Year

Earnings per equity share:

Basic ({)

Diluted (t)
Face value per equlty share ({)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chaturvedi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

lCAl Firm Registration No.: 302137E/E300286

Pan Chaturvedi

Partner

Membership No.:091239

UDIN

32

1.61

1.61

10.00

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Venus lndia fuset-Finance Private Limited

Gaurav Goel

Director

DIN No.00076LLL

Note For the year ended

March 31, 2025

4,036.13

1.47.t7

36.51

For the year ended

March 31, 2024

3,40/..57

57.20

23.83

0.02

22

23

24

25

4,2L9.8t
45.44

3,485.53

10.75

4,265.25 3,496.37

26
1a

28

29

30

728.65

272.91.

748.01.

67.29

344.76

866.32

263.71

158.16

25.92

389.84

2,161.63 1,703.95

31

2,703.62

324.97

28.O2

256.44

t,792.42

1,103.94
(163.27)

(70s.33)

1,494.t9 L5l7 0e

ls.77l
1.45

7.61.

(1.91)

(4.32) 5.69

7,489.87 7,562.78

1.68

1.68

1.0.00

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025

CEO cum Director

DIN No.03551618

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025

i:.()
c)

F-D
shweta\Je
Company Secretary
Membership No. A34258

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025
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Particulars
Balance as at
01 April 2023

Changes during

the period
Balance as at

31 March 2024
No of Equity Shares

Face Value per share

Equity Share Capital

9,27,20,6@

10

9,272.07

9,27,20,6@

10

9,272.07
9,272.O7 9,272.O7

Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in ( lacs, unless stated otherwise)

A Equity share capital

B Other equity

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chaturvedi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

lCAl Firm Registration No.: 302137E/E300286

Chaturvedi
Pa rtner
Membership No.:091239
UDIN:

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited

(
Goel

Director
DIN No. 00075111

CEO cum Director
DIN No. 03551518

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025

I
i'

Nfr
shwe\q!9fg
Company Secretary

Membership No. A34258

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025
A

Particulars
Balance as at
01 April 2024

Changes during

the period
Balance as at

31 March 2025
No of Equity Shares

Face Value per share

Equity Share Capital

9,27,20,6@

10

9,272.O7

9,27,20,660

10

9.272.07
9,272.O7 9,272.O7

Particulars

Reserves

TotalStatutory Reserve

Fund
Securities Premium

Capital Redemption

Reserve
Retained Earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2023 7,876.45 1,579.03 908.22 5,129.19 10,492.89
Profit for the period

Other comprehensive loss (net of taxes)

Transfer to statutory reserue fund u/s 45-lC of RBt Act, 1934
Less ; Transfer to statutory reserve u/s 45-lC of RBI Act, 1934

3Lt.42

1,557.09

5.69

(31 1.42)

1,557.09

5.69

371.42

(31 1.42)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2,787.87 1,579.03 908.22 7,380.56 72,O55.67

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

TotalStatutory Reserve

Fund
Securities Premium

Capital Redemption

Reserve
Retained Earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2024 2,787.87 1,579.03 908.22 7,380.55 12.055.57
Profit for the period

Other comprehensive loss (net of taxes)

Transfer to statutory reserve fund u/s 45-lC of RBI Act, 1934
Less : Transfer to statutory reserve u/s 45-lC of RBI Act, 1934

298.84

1,494.19

(4.32)

(298.84)

),,494.19

i'4.32)
298.84

( 2e8.84)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 2,486.70 1,579.03 908.22 8,571.59 13,545.s4

l.brrD.l{
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Venus lndia Asset-Finance Pdvate Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are rn I lacs, unless stated otherwrse)

A. Cash Flow from Op€rating Activities
Nct Profit bcfore Tax

Adjustmcnts for :

Effective lnterest Rate Adjusment for Financial Assets

Loss on Reclassification of Financial Asset from Amortised Cost to FWPL

Effective lnterest Rate Ad,usment for Borrowings

lmpairment on Financial lnstruments - Loans

lmpairment on Financial lnstruments - Mutual Fund

lmpairment on Financial lnstruments - Credit subsitutes
lnterest on lncome Tax Refund

Profit on sale of Property, plant and Equipment
Depreciation Expense including Amortisation of ROU Asset

Gain on sale of Mutual Funds

Unrealised Gain on Fair Value of Mutual Funds

lnterest on Lease Liabilities

lnterest on FDR

OpcratlnS Profit before Working Capital Changes

Movement in Worklng Capltal:

Loans

Other Financial Assets

Other Non-Financial tusets
Trade Payables

Other financial liabtlrties

Other non-financial liabiities
Provisions

lnvestment in Debt Securities

Cash Generated from / (used ln) Operating Actlvltles
lncome Tax Paid {Net of Refunds)

Net cash generated from/(uscd in) opeEting activities

B Cash flow from investln8 activities :

Purchase of mutual fund

Proceeds from sale of mutual fund

Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from of property and equipment and other adjustments
Movement in other bank deposits

N.t cash generated from/(used in) investinS actlvltlcs

C Cash flow from financint actiylties :

Proceeds from borrowings other than Debt Securities

Repayment of borrowings other than Debt Securities

Payment of Lease Liability

Net cash (used in) / gencratcd from Financing Activities

D Net Dccrease in Cash and Cash Equlvalents ( A+B+C )

E Cash and Cash Equivalents at thr beginning of the ycar

F Cash and Cash Equivalents at thc end of thr year ( D + E )

Notes:

Cash and Cash Equlvalents as at the end of the year lnclude:
Cash on hand

Balances with scheduled banks;
- in current accounts
- rn Cash Credit Accounts

Cash and Cash Equlvalents as at the end of the year (refer note 5)

i) Refer note 16(iii) for reconcilration of liabilities arising from financing activities.
fu per our report of even date attached

For Chaturvedi & Co. ILP

Chartered Accountants

lCAl Firm Registration No.:

Chaturvedl
Partner

Membership No.: 091239
UDIN:

For thr year ended
31 March, 2025

For the year ended
31 March, 2024

2097.85 1,800.03

(32.6s) (s.01)

0.73 4.O9

(1,082.48) 1s8.15

10.00

1,820.49

(44.18)

- (e.es)

67.29 25.92

141.36], (0.36)

10.84 (23.47],

26.44 10.57
l)a n1\

2,803.01 1,959.9E

(2,717.2sl

(3.03)

26.O7

(ss.8o)

(28.4s)

12.o2l
28.32

8,995.19

{ 148.19)

117.53

43.73
'1,.94

8.61

(15.28)

14,732.3O)
50.86

(410.31)
6,23t.20
i.l,7t9.s4)

(3ss.4s) 5,051.56

(9,433.33)

8,048.29

(36.63)

(88.46)

( 1,836.67)

73.85

(33.s3)

18.20

( 15.52)
(1,510.13) 17,7s4.771

1,,922.87

(61.00)
{3,468.56)

( 2 1.83)

1,861.87 (3,490.39)

l7.to)

48.51

(233.s0)

282.O1,

40.80 48.51

7.O2

39.78

1.38

47.1,3

/t0.80

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Venus lndia tuset-Financc Private Limitrd

4E.51

#Gaurav

Place: New Delhi

Datc: 27 lune 2025

Shweta Garg

Company Secretary

Membership No. A34258

Director
DIN No. 00075111

CEO cum Director
DIN No. 03551518

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025
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Venus lndia Asset Finance Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

1. Company Overview

Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited ("the Company") was incorporated on 2 September 1996. The name of the

Company was changed to Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited and a fresh Certificate of lncorporation was

obtained dated 12 February 2014. The Company is registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia ('RBl')

Act, 1934 to carry on business as a Non-Banking Financial lnstitution without accepting public deposits vide Certificate of

Registration no. 8-14.02098 dated 27 October 2000. Consequent to chang6 in name of the Company, a new Certificate

of Registration No. B-14.02098 dated 4 March 2014 has been issued by the RBl. The Company is engaged in providing

short and medium term loans as general purpose finance to borrowers. The Company is a subsidiary of Venus lndia

Structured Finance Master Limited (Previously Known as VISFF No-1 Ltd).

The financial statements for this year ended March 31, 2025 were approved by its Board of Directors and authorized for

issue on June-, 2025.

2. Basis of Preparation

(i) Statement of compliance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS)

These financial statements ('the financial statements') have been prepared in accordance with the lndian Accounting

Standards ('lnd AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
('Act') read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of

ine Rct (to the extent notified and applicable) and other applicable guidelines issued by the RBl. The Guidance Note on

Division lll - Schedule lll to the Act issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("lCAl') has been followed

insofar as they are not inconsistent with any of these Directions.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in lndia. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain

financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases

summarised as below. These policies are applied consistently for all the periods presented in the financial statements.

a. Propefi and Equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if

capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended

use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only

when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to such subsequent cost associated with the item will flow to

the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method and usefu! lives)

Property and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the written-down method over the useful life of the assets
as prescribed in Schedule ll of the Companies Act, 2013. The useful lives determined by the management are as
follows:

Y7U

e)

(.i
*
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A

Useful Iife (in years)Asset class

Furniture and fixtures 10

Computers 3

].ld Oat{
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Office equipment 2to 5

Venus lndia Asset Finance Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

Vehicles

Depreciation is calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or till the date the asset is
sold or disposed.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.

b. Revenue recognition

lnterest and processing fee income on loans

lnterest and processing fee income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (ElR) method. Additional
interest / overdue interest / penal charges / documentation charges / pre-payment charges, if any, are recognised only
when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

lnterest on investments and deposits

lnterest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (ElR) method.

For purchased or originated credlt-impaired (POCI) financial assets, the Company calculates interest income by
calculating the credit-adjusted EIR and applying that rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The credit-adjusted EIR is
the interest rate that, at original recognition, discounts the estimated future cash flows (including credit losses) to the
amortised cost of the POCI assets.

Miscellaneous income

All other income is recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate realization/ collection

c. Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost consists of interest and other cost that the Company incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred basis the effective interest rate
method.

d. Taxation

Tax expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the
ones recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance
with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised
outside profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts,
and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Defened tax assets are recognised
on unused tax loss, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that the future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be used This is assessed based on the Company's forecast of

ncome and expenses and specific llmits on the

8
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Venus lndia Asset Finance Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 3l March 2025

unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is

realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner In

which the Ciompany expects, at the reporting date to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts,

and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. Defened tax relating to

items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit or loss (either in other

comprehensive income or in equi$).

e. Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefi ts

Short{erm employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonus etc. is recognized on the basis of the

amount paid or piyable for the year during which services are rendered by the employee.

Defined contribution Plan

The Company has defined contribution plan namely provident fund and pension fund. The contributions made by the

company towards these plans are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined benefit plan

The Company has unfunded gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on retirement

is defined by reference to the- employee's length of service and last drawn salary. The liability recognised in the balance

sheet for Obfined benefit ptans is ine present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the reporting date.

Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. Actuarial gains/losses resulting

from re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive income.

Other long-term employee benefits:

The Company also provides the benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long-term

employee beirefit pl'an. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to availed after one

year fiom the Balance Sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent

ictuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Actuaria! gains and.losses arising from past

experience anO cninjes in actuarial assumptions are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which such

gains or losses are determined.

f. lmpairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. lf any

such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. Recoverable amount is higher of an

asset's net selling price and its'value in use. lf such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the

cash generating 
-uiit 

to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its

recov6rable amiount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and

Loss. lf at the reporting date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the

recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount.

S. lmpairment of financial assets

ln accordance with lnd AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition

of impairment loss for financial assets. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

Loan and investment in deb-securities jointly read as loan assets

The Company follows a 'three-stage' model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as

New Delhl

summarized below:



. Stage 1 (1-30 days) includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or
that have low credit risk at the reporting date.

. Stage 2 (3160 days) includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but

that do not have objective evidence of impairment.

. Stage 3 (more than 90 days) includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2

and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default,

defined as follows:

Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition.
pOCl assets are recorded at fair value at original recognition and interest income is subsequently recognised based on a

credit-adjusted ElR. ECLs are only recognised or released to the extent that there is a subsequent change in the

expected credit losses.

Probability of Default (PD)

The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation, either over the next 12 months (12

months PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

Loss Given Default (LGD)

LGD represents the Company's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of

counterparty, type and preference of claim and availabili$ of collateral or other credit support.

Exposure at Default (EAD)

EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of default. Forward-looking econornic

information (including management overlay) is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. The

assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Other financial assets

ln respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased

significantly since initial recognition. lf the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company

m-easures ihe loss allowanc6 at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the

lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of

the financial Lsset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial

asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial

recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is

indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a

financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low

credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entire$ to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of

recovery. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instrument on statement of profit and loss.

h. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments (original

maturig less than three months) that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

Venus lndia Asset Finance Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

i. Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable

estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date These estimates are reviewed at
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Venus lndia Asset Finance Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

date and adjusted to reflect the cunent best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time
value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

. Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or

. Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realization of income is virtually certain, related
asset is disclosed.

j. Leases

lnd AS 116- Lease

lnd AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires

lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model.

Company as a Lessee:

Accountino at the time of transition to lnd AS

The Company adopted lnd AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application
of April 1 , 2018 (i.e. lnd AS transition date applicable to the Company).

Under this approach, the lease liability is measured at the present value of remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the date of transition to lnd AS. The right of use assets is measured at an
amount equal to lease liabilig adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the Balance Sheet immediately before the date of transition to lnd AS.

The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a
lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option ('shortterm leases'), and lease contracts for which
the underlying asset is of low value ('low-value assets').

Accountinq post transition to lnd AS

At inception of a contract, Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for
consideration.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the rightof-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-
of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. ln addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. lt is re measured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of

u
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Venus lndia Asset Finance Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

When the lease liability is re measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in 'property and
equipment' (see Note 13) and lease liabilities in 'borrowings (other than debt securities)' in the balance sheet. (see Note
16).

k. Financiallnstruments

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

lnitial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becpmes a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transactions costs, except for those carried
at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities is described below.

Non-derivative fi nancial assets

Subsequent measurement

i. Financial assets carried at amortised cost - a financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following
conditions are met:

'The asset is held within a business model whose objectlve is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
' Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (ElR) method.

ii. lnvestments in mutual funds - lnvestments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL).

iii. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss - Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or
loss if they are:

o llot held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows oro oot held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets.

Business model that results in measurement at fair value through profit or loss is one in which an entity manages the
financial assets with the objective of realising cash flows through the sale of the assets.

Reclassification of Financial Assets:

An Entity should reclassify financial assets if the entity changes its business model for managing those financial assets.
Such changes are expected to be very infrequent. Such changes are determined by the entity's senior management as a
result of external or internal changes and must be significant to the entity's operations and demonstrable to external
parties.

De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Company has not
control, it shall also derecognise the financial asset and recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rig
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Venus India Asset Finance Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

Non-derivative financia! Iiabilities

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derlvative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of fi nancial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

l. Earnings per equity share

Basic eamings per equity share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per equity share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

m. Foreign currency

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statement of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements have been prepared and
presented in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, by applying the exchange rates on the foreign
currency amounts at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date
are converted to functional currency using the closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which
are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences
arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those at which they
were initially recorded, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year In which they arise.

n. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
perlod, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet
date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

o. Segment reporting

The Company identifies segment basis of the internal organisation and management structure. The operating segments
are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profiVloss amounts are
regularly reviewed by the CODM ('chief operating decision maker') and in assessing performance. The aerounting policies
adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company. Segment
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Venus lndia Asset Finance Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship with
the operating activities of the segment.

4. Significant management judgment in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates, and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Significant management judgments

Recognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an

assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Business model assessment

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The
Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to
understand the reason for their. disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for
which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for
which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has
been a change in business model and accordingly prospective change to the classification of those assets are made.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of the applicability of indicators of impairment of
assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable

amount of the assets.

Expected Credit Loss ('ECL') - The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured
at amortized cost requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and
credit behavior (e.9., likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Company makes significant judgments
with regard to the following while assessing expected credit loss.

Determining criteria for a significant increase in credit risk;

Establishing the number and relative weightings of fonrard-looking scenarios for each type of producUmarket and

the associated ECL,

Establishing groups of similar financial assets to measure ECL;

Estimating the probability of default and loss given default (estimates of recoverable amounts in case of default);

and

Estimating expected cash flows POCI assets.

Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these
estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
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Venus lndia Asset-tinance Private Limited
Summary of slgnificant accountint policies and other explanatory notes for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in { lacs, unless stated otheruise)

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

As at

31 March 2024
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand

Balance with Bank (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)
- in Current Accounts
- in Cash Credit Accounts
- rn Term Deposrts with original maturity of three months or less (including Accrued lnterest)

1.02

39.78

1.38

47.r3

40.81 /l8-51

Particulars
As at
31 March 2025

As 8t
31 March 2024

Othcr Bank Balanccs

Balance with Bank (refer note below)
- in Term Deposits with origrnal maturity of more than three months (including Accrued lnterest) 395.46 307.00

395.46 307.00

Note: Term Deposits amounting to t 395.46 lakhs (31 March 2024: { 307.00 lakhs) are under lien agarnst borrowings from Banks and Financial lnstitutions.

' lncludes rnterest accrued
** The Company does not hold any loans outside lndia

the substance of such transactions.

(This spoce hos been intentionolly leJt blonk)
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Partlculars
As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Loans (At Amortised Cost)

Secured

- Term Loans*

- Credrt Substitutes #

Unsecured
- Staff Loans

Total

(a) Secured by tangible assets

(b) Secured by intangible assets (shares, receivables and promissory notes)

(c) Unsecured

Net Total

Loans ln lndia"
(i) Public sector
(ii) Others

Net Total

15,rt05.07

8,471.96

1,6.24

17,262.55

5,649.U

20.38

?3,A99.27 22,932.77

12,458.18

7r,424.85

15.24

4,431.66

18,480.73

20.38

23,A99.27 22,932.77

23,899.27 )) aa) 17

n,499.27 22,932.77
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Venu6 lndia A6set-Finance Private Limited
Summary of significant sccountinS policies and other explanatory notes for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in I lacs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars
As at

31 March 2025

tuat
31 March 2024

Current Tax tusets/ (Liabilities) (Net)

Advance lncome Tax and Tax Deducted at Source (Net of Provision) 643.15 541.66

643.15 s47.66

Movement in deferred tax aseets (net)

10

7L

ci (v'

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

As at

31 March 2024
Other Financial Assets

Security Deposits

Advance for Purchase of Mutual Fund

12.87 9.84

150.00

12.87 159.84

Particulars
As at

31 March 2025

As at

31 March 2024

Defened Tax Assets (Net)

Deferred Tax Assets arising on account of:
- Timing difference on depreciation of Property, plant and equipment (excluding impact of right of use under a lease)

- Provision for employees benefits
- lmpairment on financial instruments
- Financial instruments measured at amortised cost

- Lease liability ( including impact of right of use under a lease)

Total Deferred Tax Assets

Defened tax liability arisinB on account of:
- Financial instruments measured at amortised cost

- Fair value ad.iustment on investment in mutual funds

Total Deferred Tax Liability

t2.61
30.09

218.20

18.78

5.40

1.43

29.20

483,80

26.81

1.67

285.08 542.97

3.07 5.91

3.O7 5.91

Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (Net) 282.O7 537.m

Particulars
tuat

1 Aoril 2024

Recognised in profit and

loss

Recognised in other
comorehensive income

As at

31 March 2025

Defened tax assets arising on account of:
- Timing difference on depreciation of Property, plant and equipment
(excluding impact of right of use under a lease)

- Provision for employees benefits
- lmpairment on financral instruments
- Lease liability ( including impact of right of use under a lease)

- Financral instruments measured at amortised cost

- lmpairment on financial instruments
- Fair value adjustment on investment in mutual funds

- lmpairment on financial instruments

1.43

29.20

483.80

7.67

25.8t

5.91

(11.19)

0.56

26s.60

(3.73)

8.03

2.84

1.45

t2.61

30.09

278.20

5.40

18.78

3.07

Total 537.00 256.44 1.45 282.01

Particulars
As at

1 April 2023

Recognised in profit and

loss

Recognised in other
comprehensive income

As at

31 March 2024

Defened tax assets arising on account of:
- Timing difference on depreciation of Property, plant and equipment
(excluding impact of right of use under a lease)

- Provision for employees benefits

- lmpairment on financial instruments
- Lease liability ( including impact of right of use under a lease)

Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of:
- lmpairment on financial instruments
- Fair value adlustment on investment in mutual funds

- lmpairment on financial instruments

650.08

1.31

10.45

30.53

444.@

9.O2

(676.89)

4.59

0.0c

{0.s8)
(3e.81)

(1.67)

(1.s1)

1.43

( 26.81)

5.91

29.20

483.80

7.67

l.: I.-.---"-L.:1\Total 1L66.421 (70s.33) -^- (1.91) 537.00
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Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in { lacs, unless stated otherwise)

13 Right-of-use Asset

Particulars Right-of-use Asset

Gross Block

Balance as at 31 March 2023 0.00
Additions during the period

Disposals / Ad iustments
245.66

Balance as at 31 March 2024 245.66
Additions during the period

Disposals / Adjustments

Balance as at 31 March 2025 245.65

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 31 March 2023
Depreciation charge for the period

Disposals / Adjustments
17.75

Balance as at 31 March 2024 L7.76
Depreciation charge for the period

Disposals / Adiustments
49.10

Balance as at 31 March 2025 65.85

Net Block

Balance as at 31 March 2024 227.90
Balance as at 31 March 2025 L78.79

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Vcnus lndia tu*t-Financr Privatc Limitcd

Summary of slgnlficant ac@ntlnt policles and othcr cxplanatory notcs ftr the YGor cndcd 91 March 2025

(All amounts are rn I lac, unless stated otheMrse)

PartiNlaE
As at

31 March 2025

As at

31 March 2024

Othcr Non-Financial Ass.ts

Prepaid expenses

Balance wrth Government Authonties

Advance a8ainst Property

Advance to Vendors

2!.44
19.25

14.50

0.39

71.92

19.05

44.50

o.22

55.61 81.69

Partiolars
tual

31 March 2025

As at

91 March 2024

Tradc payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 33)

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprlses

7.26

7.89

0.15

64.79

9.15 54.95

Trade

Particulars

frm thc

Unbilled Lcs than 1 ycar 1-2 ycars 2-3 Ycars Morc than 3 ycars Total

(i) MsrvE
(ii) others
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

t.26
7.49

1.26

7.49

14

15

16

rat31

Particulars

Outstandint frm thc date of thc transction

Unbilled LGs than 1 ycar 1-2 vaars 2-3 !'ears Morc than 3 years Total

(i) MsME

(ii) others
(ri) Disputed dues- N4SME

(iv) Disouted dues - others

22.69

0.16

42.10

0.16

64.79

ilTcrm lon from bank tndudcs (all thc bclfl mcntionrd rcpaymcnts discled r pcr thc cstEctual maturitics of bdrowings (othcr than dcbt sccuritics) at 8rG @rrying valuc):

the end of 18th month from the date of drsbursement r.e. 16 05.2024. Total loan outstanding as on 31 March 2025 rs ? 3,000.00 lakhs (31 March 2024: a 3,000.00)

ii) Loan rcpayablc on demand frm banks indudcs:

per annum, rest on annual basts and payable on monthlY basis

(This space has been intentronally left blank)

!l

Partifllars
Ar at

31 March 2025

As at

31 March 202,1

(othrr than Dcbt S.ruritics) (At Amortised CGt)

Lease Obligations - Lease hability

Term loans From banks

Loans repayable on demand from banks

From others

199.87

3,000.00

1,922.a7

234.39

2,999.27

s,122.15 3.233.55

Eorrowings in lndia

Borrowings outside lndia

4,922.47 2,999.27

+922.A7 2,999.27

I{cf,rthhl

g
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ill) Rc@ncillatlon of llabilities arislnt from flnancint acttvitics

Particulars Lca$ liablllty
Borrowlnts

(Oth.r than drbt
sccqritics)

Total

Ar at 01 April 2023

Crh flows:

Repayment of debt securities/borrowings
-Unamortised fees

Payment of rentals

No-rch:
lnterest on lease liability

Decrease in Lease liability

lmpact of borrowings measured at amortised cost
-Effective interest rate adjustment

0.m

(21.83)

6,463.74

(3,460.37)

(4.0e)

6,463.71

(3,/160.37)

(21.83)

10.57

245.66

10.s7

215.6

(4.09)

tu at 31 March 2024 234.39 2,999.28 3,233.66

Cch flows:

Repayment of debt securities/borrowings obtained

Payment of rentals (61.00)

1,923.51 1,923.61
(61.m)

Nm-oh:
lnterest on lease liability 26.4A 26.4
Decrease rn Lease Iabrlrty

lmpact of borrowings measured at amortised cost

-Eff ectrve rnterest rate adjustment

As'"t 5t ,**" z,JA

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in { lacs, unless stated otherwise)

(This space hos been intentionolly left blonk)
Y

Particulars
As at

31 March 2025

As at

31 March 2024

Other Financial Liabilities

Payable to employees

Payable to others 14.08

19.00

23.53

14.08 42.53

Particulars
As at

31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Provisions

lmpairment Loss Allowance on Loans and lnvestment

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 34)

Compensated absences

876.98

94.91.

24.64

1.,922.29

75.01

2t.99

996.s3 2,019.30

Particulars
As at

31 March 2025

As at

31 March 2024

Other non-financial liabilities

Advance received from customers

Statutory dues payable 16.47

4.64

13.85

16.47 18.50

Ncw[lc[{

' --t
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Vcnu.lndh Aset+lEE. PrlEt Unh.d
SuhEay of shhilicail .@htlha Flklcs .nd dh.rcrpLEtorv d.r for thc yr., chdcd 31 M.rch 2025

{All.mounts are rn { lacs, unlesi stated olheMise)

20.1 Equhy.h.r.eph.l

P.dkul.rs

Afrhorlad
Equity shares of I 10 lprevious year { 10) each

lssucd

Equity shares of { 10 Iprevious Far a 101 €ach

Subccrlb.d .nd peld 0p
Equry shares of { 10 {previous year t 10) each fulv pad up

14.00.00.000 14,0@.m 14.m.m.0m
l4.m.m.(m 14.(m.m lit-q).00-(m

9.27.20.66 9,212.07 I )7) 07

9.27.20.ffi 9.217.O7 9.27.20.@

9.21.20.6& 9,272.O7 9.27.20.6fi c )7) 07

I )7 70_ffi 9.777.O7 9.27.20.560 9.272.O7

Pankul.r

1 M/e Venus lndia Slructured Finafte M.5ler Limiled (forreV known as VISFF No I timhed) HoldinS ComPny
2 Gel lNPsrmnts limned

7,21,06,7 29 77.77% 7,21,6,729
1 59 13 957

11.11%

7a )4%

Penkulara

I M/s Venur lndb Struclured Finame Masler Limired (forrely known aiV|SFF No t timiled) 7 )167)9 7 270 67 1.21.6.129 1.210.67

sh.rcholdlE Etcm ot p,!mt.B lF.@ Elu. ( t0 Frsh.,.l
. "ixll"'J'" l,,ii"fii1,1lll

1 M/s V€nus lndE Slructured Finafte Mailer limited (forreV known as VISFF No 1 timiled) 7,21,6.729 77.77% 7,21,6,129
1 69 13 957

11.11.4 o.wa
o.wa

0.m?6
ffi, GFllEP.lmnl< limited

20.2 T.mtthB.trchcd b rqultyrh.rcr

The Dilidend props€d by lhe Board of Oirecror! is subject to the approval of the rhar€holder in the ensuin8 hnual General MeelrnS.

During rhe y€ar ended 31 March 2025, the arcunt of Fr share dividend recqnized as dinributions lo equ(y shareholdeG wat Rs. Nil (31 March 2024. Rt Nil ).

rhar€s held by the shareholdeE.

During the year f.Y 2022-23, rhe comFny has boughr back 48,99,172 equity shares of Face ValE INR 10 each at Rs 23-18 Fr share.

21 Oth.r.qulty

Ra*e ard suaplur ls at
31 M.ich 2025

As at
31 M.,.h 202,t

sbtddy nd.e fund (undcr sdbn /ts-lc ot thr RrEre 8.nt oa lndL A.t 19:l,l)

Balance al lhe beSinning oftlE y.ar
Addnion during lhe year

Statutory Reserue (under seclion 45 lC of the Reserve Eank of lndia Acl, 1934)

9cudtLs pramluh a@d
Balance at the beSinninS ofthe Far
Addition during lhe year

Ulilisatbn for bW bac* of shar.s
fransfer to Capital Redemption Resetoe (tace Value of SlEres bou8hl back)

Tax pad on bry backof rhares

Securities Premium

2,187.87

298.U
2,1{,6.70

1,876.45

111.42

2,147.87

1,579.03

1,579.Ct

1,579.03

1,579.Ct

R!t.lmd .amlngg
Balance at the beSinning of lhe year

Addition durinS rhe year

Other comprehenri€ incoft
Lers : Transterto rlatutory reserve u/s45fC of RBI Acl, 1934

R€tained eamirBt

CaplEl rcdcmptbn r.srM
Balance al the beSinning ofth€ Far
Addilion during lhe year

Capftal redemption rerre

7,380 56

1,494.19
(4 32)

(298.84)

8,57159

6.129.20

1,557.@

5.69
(111.42)

7,38056

908.22

ql8.22

q)8.22

9G22

Tdl lrgsq

sbtuory Rcs.re {uhdcrsdbh 45-lc ofthc tusrM 8.nl of lndL Ad, 19:!i)

Profitand toss and before any dtuid€nd ts declared. The recrve lund can be used onv forthe purpors as srecified bV th€ Reserve Bank of lndia-

S€udtlct Prcmluh

R.blmd .aml.$
Retaimd earnir8s represent the unditribut€d profits ofthe ComFny.

Capbl rcdcmptbn rc$re
Tht resetue represenlr reserve created on redemption of equity rhares.Th€ reserue is utilised in accordame with the provisions of the Companies kt, 2013.

_!'-l;:' ,'*

tlryDcfd
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Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in { lacs, unless stated otherwise)

22

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Revenue from operations

lnterest income (on Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost)

lnterest on l.oan5

lnterest from lnvestment in Debt Securities

lnterest on Deposits with Banks

lnterest on Other Financial Assets

3,372.63

695.77

24.0t
3.7t

3,190.36

r92.62

18.46

3.13

4,036.13 3,404.57

Particu lars
For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Net tain on Fair Value Changes

On Financial lnstruments designated at Fair Value through Profit and loss

- Ciranges in Fair Value of lnvestment in Mutual Funds

Total Net Gain on Fair Value ChanBes

Fair Value Changes:

Realised

Unrealised

Total Net Gain on Fair Value

36.51 23.83

36.51 23.83

47.36
(10.84)

0.36

23.41

36.51 23.83

7_4

Pa rticulars
For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Net Bain on dereco8nition of financial instruments

under amortised cost cateSory

On Financial lnstruments designated at Amortised Cost

Total Net Gain on derecognition of fi nancial instruments under amortised cost category

0.02

0.02

?5

For the year ended
Particulars 31 March

Other income

Misccllaneous income

lnterest on lncome Iax Refund

Profit on Derecognition of ROU Asset

1.26

44.t8

for the year ended

31 March 2024

10.75

10.75

26

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Finance costs

On Finarrcial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost

lnterest on Debt Securilies

Irrter'est on Borrowings (other than Debt Securities)

Other Borrowing Costs

lnterest Expense on Lease Liability

lnterest expense on Delayed Payment of Statutory Dues

646.78

20.25

26.48

35.14

829.50

25.25

10.57

0.00

728.65 856.32

'li

!itlu D€[nvi:
l.
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27
Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Employee benefits expenses

Salaries and wages

G ratuity
Lcave Encashment

Contribution to provident and other funds

Staff welfare expenses

208.25

75.72

7.24

20.13

21.57

224.30

0.81

3.81

19.69

15.10

272.91 263.7r

,8

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

lmpairment on Financial lnstruments
Impairment (Gain) / Loss on Loans (Net)- measured at Amotised Cost

Loans written off
lmpairment on lnvestment in Mutual Fund- measured at Fair Value through Profit & Loss

lmpairment on lnvestment in Credit Subsitutes - measured at Amotised Cost

lnvestment in Credit Subsitutes written off

(1,082.48)

10.00

27.t7
1,793.32

(1,367.44],

1,52s.60

748.01 158.15

29

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Depreciation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on riBht of use assets

18.18

49.10

8.16

77.76

67.29 25.92

30

For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

225.68

77.27

8.75

9.84

29.70

7.02

1.69

1.85

7.77

3.66

22.44

4.06

0.45

0.68

0.82
0.60
3.01
0.14

168.24

18.65

58.51

20.59

30.08

7.87

34.86

0.82

1,0.r2

5.01

20.19

1.86

0.69

0.73

0.04

0.99
1.59
8.98

Other expenses

Lcgal and professional charges

Auditors' remuneration (refer note below)

Travelling and conveyance

Power and fuel

Goods and Services Tax expense

Office maintenance

Renl expenses

Dues and subscription

Repair and maintcnance

Communication

Corpr>rate Social Responsibility Expenses (refer note below)

Business promotion
Printing and stationery

Bank charges

Adverl isment and publicity

Vehicle running charges

I nsrrra nce
lVliscellaneous exnFnses
Balancc Writtcn Off / Back

Particulars

344.76 389.84

Nerv DdH
{
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Auditor's remuneration

f.or stelutory audrt

t'r i.,^ iudil
lcrtrfrcatron CharSes

fin mount spent the

Particulars

ction / acquisition of any asset

On other than above

5 Reason for shortfall

6 Naturc of CSR activtties

Details of related partv transactions, e.g.,contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to

CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Health care and enhancing child education, eradicating

poverty by empowering women, disseminating

happiness in oldage home, animal welfare providing

protection to Gau-matas, Feeding the needy people,

and helping the DruB addicted people to be addiction

free.

For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

15.00

2.00

1.65

15.00

2.00

0.21

77.27 18.65

Total

NilNil1

B Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obliSation,

the movements rn the proviston

l1 lncome tax expense

Not Applicable Not Applicable

lncomc tax expcnsc sed in Statement of I oss

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2024

Current tax

Fariier year tax

Deferred tax cha

The malor components of tax expense and the reconciliation of the expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate and the reported tax expense

in staterrent of profit and loss, is as follows:-

Pa rticulars

Prcfit before tax

Domestic tax rate

[xpccted tax cxpense [A]

Tax inrpact due to lnd-AS adjustments

lmpact for change rn tax rate

Deductiorr u/s 36(1Xvii)(a)

Others

Total adjustmenl s IB]

Actual tax expense [C=A+8]

I f,x crpensc compnscs:

Cu(ent tax expense

Dcf crred tax charge/(credit)

c
j:tr

s

For the year ended

31 March 2024

For the year ended

31 March 2025

(20.19)

19.5822.44

122.44\

requrred to be spent by the company durint the year

of cxpenditure incurredS

Particulars

US shortfall

Shortfall at the end of the year

Iof

For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

20.1922.44

For the year ended

31 March 2025

1,103.94

l.763.27].
(70s.33)

374.97

28.02

256.44
235.33609.44

For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

2,143.62

25,71%

1,792.42

25.71%

529.M 457.72

193.69

(41.t .54)

297.83

(281 s8)

229.07

1163.27)

79.99 (27s.79].

235.33609.43

353 00

256.44
940.67

(70s.33 )

609.44 235.33

1{c* D€I{

ax

(Thts spoce hos been inten

on:

U"'



Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limlted
5ummary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory notca for thc year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in { lacs, unless stated otherurse)

32 Earnln8s pcr equity share

33 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Mlcrg Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006:

(This spoce hos been intentionolly left blonk)

R

Pa rticula rs
For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year cnded

31 March 2024

a) Net profh after tax for the year

b) Numbcr of cquity sharcs

Opening number of equity shares at the beginning of the period

Closing number of equity sha res at the end of the period

Weighted average number of equity shares

c) Earnlngs per equity share
- Basic

- Diluted

7,494.79

9,27,20,6@

9,27,20,6@

9,27,20,6@

1.61

1.61

1,557.09

9,21,20,6@

9,27,20,6@

9,27,20,6@

1.68

1.68

ParUculars
For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the ycar ended

31 March 2024

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

(ii) lnterest due thereon remarning unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

(iii) The amount of interest by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

with the amount ofthe payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting period

(iv) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the

appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accountinB period

(vi) theamountoffurtherinterestremainingdueandpayableeveninthesucceedingyears,untilsuchdatewhen theinterestdues

above are actually paid to the small enterpflse, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

1,.26 0.16

New Delhl
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venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited

Summary of significant accountinS policies and other explanatory notes for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in { lacs, unless stated otherwtse)

34 Employee Benefits

(i) Description of the defined contribution plans

The company makes contributron towards employee's provident fund. Under these schemes, the company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost as

specified in the rules of the schemes to these defined contribution schemes

The company has recognised { 12.43 lakhs (31 Mar 2024: { 11.54 lakhs) during the year as expense towards contrlbutrons to these plans.

(ii) Description ofthe defined benefit plans

Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure of 15 days salary (last drawn

salary) for each completed year of service.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost were measured using the Projected Unrt Credit Method with actuarial valuation being

carried out at each balance sheet date.

The following tables set out the status of the gratuity plan and amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at 31 March 2025:

in the Statement of Profit the

b) Remeasurement tn income

value of the

d) in defined beneftt the

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

c)

\

{-,,t

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Current service cost

lnterest cost

Total

10.39

5.33

8.55

6.57

15.72 15.12

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Actuarial garn/(loss) on re-measurement of oblrgation:-

a) Actuarial gain/(loss) arising from changes in demographrc assumption

b) Actuarial gain/(loss) artsing from changes in financial assumption

c) Actuarial Bain/(loss) arising from experience adjustments

Total

5.80

(0.02)

3.58

( 11,19)

5.77 (7.61)

Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Det6ils of provision for gratuity

Defined benefit obligation

Less: Fair value of plan assets

Net liability recognised in balance sheet

94.91 75.01

94.91 75.01

Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Openrng balance of defined benefit obligation

lnterest cost

Current seruice cost

Net actuarial (garn)/loss on obligation

Benefits paid during the year

Closing balance of defined benefit obliSation

75.01

5.33

10.39

5.11
(1.50)

88.82

5.57

8.55

(7.61)

(21..321

94.91 75.01

i.larO.ttl
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e) for

The discount rate is based on prevailing market yields of Government of lndia securities as at the balance sheet for the estimated term of the obligations.

The estimate of future salary increase has been considered, taking into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant factors.

The gratuity plan ts unfunded.

fl of defined benefit

Particulars

a) lmpact of the change in discount rate

i) lmpact due to increase of 1OO basis points (31 March 2024: 100 basis points)

ii) lmpact due to decrease of 1OO basis potnts (31 March 2024: 100 basis points)

b) lmpact of the change in salary increase

i) lmpact due to increase of 100 basis points {31 March 2024: 100 basrs points)

of 100 basis basis

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence tmpact of change has been presented not calculated

s) of benefit

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

e
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Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Discount rate

Salary escalation rate

Retirement age (in years)

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disabilrty

Withdrawal Rate

6.70%

10%

50

IALM 2012-14 ult.

1%

7.10%

70Yo

60

IALM 2012-14 ult.

7%

For the year ended

31 March 2024

For the year ended

31 March 2025

(11.21)

13.52

i3.m
{11.03)

(13.7s)

15.48

15.79
( 13.48)

Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Less than 1 year

Above 1 year

0.68

94.22

0.55

74.45

tls$, Dolhi
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Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in { lacs, unless stated otherwise)

35 Related party disclosures

al Related parties

ln accordance with the requirements of lndian Accounting Standard (lnd AS-24) on related party disclosures where control exlst and where transactions have taken

place and description of the relationship as identified and certified by management are as follows:

(i) Ultimate Holding Company Venus lndia Structured Finance (Offshore) Fund Limited (British Virgin lslands)

Venus lndia Structured Finance Master Limited (British Virgin lslands)

(ii) Holding Company

(iii) Entities under common control

M/s Venus lndia Structured Finance Master Limited (formely known as VISFF No 1 Limited)

Goel lnvestments Limited

Dhampur Sugar Mills Limited

(iv) Key Management Personnel (KMP) Mr. Gaurav Goel (Director)

Mr. Doraiswamy Srinivas (Director)

Ms. lndu Singh (Company Secretary) Ceased w.e.f. 10.08.2024

Ms. Prerna Bajaj (CEO w.e.f 01.02.2023 and Director w.e.f. 01.04.2024)

Mrs. Shweta Garg (Company Secretary) w.e.f. 28.Oa.2024

b) Trane4tqryilh

Particulars
year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Remuneration "
- lndu Singh

- Shwta Garg

- Prerna Balaj

Staff loan Biven
- Prerna Bajaj

- lndu Singh

Repayment received for staff loan

- Prerna Eajaj

- lndu Singh

Professional eervices

- Gaurav Goel

Reimbursement of Erpenses

- Prerna Bajaj^

*r Does not include gratuity and compensated absences, since the provision is based upon actuarial for the Company as a whole

2.98

5.81

74.83

8.78

59.97

20.42

1.000.02

7.ffi
0.83

60.00

4.20

5.00

2.40

50.00

3.24

c) Ealances outstandinc at the oeriod end

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 202431 March 2025

Salary/Bonus payable

- Prerna Balaj^

Staff Loan (at amortised cost)

- lndu Singh

- Prerna Bajaj^ 10.99

10.00

0.81

16.09

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in { lacs, unless stated otherwise)

37 OtherStatutory lnformation
i) The company does not have any Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) as at March 3L,2025

ii) The company does not have any lntangible assets under Development as at March 3L,2025

iii)The Company does not have any transaction with companies struck off.

iv) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

v) The Company does not have any subsidiary company.

vi) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed

as income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions

of the lncome Tax Act, 1961..

vii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

viii) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the companyfor holding any benami property under the BenamiTransactions

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

ix) With regards to the borrowings taken by the company from banks on the basis of security of current assets, the quarterly statements

filed by the company with such banks are in agreement with the Books of Accounts

x) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial lnstitution or other lender

xi)The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read wrth Companies

(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

xii) No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act,

201,3.

xiii)(a) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of

funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (lntermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing

or otherwise) that the lntermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever

by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries.

xiii)(b) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

understanding (whether recorded in wrlting or otherwise) that the company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security

or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Venus lndia tuset-Finan@ Privatc Limited

Summsry of sitnlfi@nt sccountint policies snd othcr aplenatory not6 for th? year endcd 31 Msrch 2025

{All amounts are in { lacs, unless stated otherwise)

38 Segment reportlnt

amounts appearing in these frnancial statements related to the Company's single business segment.

39. lnd AS 116 Lcascs

riBht to use assets and lease liabilities for those lease contracts except for short-term lease and lease of low-value assets.

equipment with low value. The Company applies the 'short-term lease' and 'lease of low-value assets' recotnitron exemptions for these leases.

Company is prohibited from selling or pledgint the underlyint leased assets as security.

a) Lease paymsts not included ln mcasurcment of lcasc liabillty

The expense relating to not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

0.28 34.38Short term leases

b) Sct out of lcasc liabllltles thc mflmffts
20,5 31 March 2024

opcnint balance

Addrtions

Accretion of interest
Payments

Deletions

Closlng balancc

234.39

26.48

61.m

199.87

245.66

10.57

21.83

234.39

c) The Company had total cash outflows for leases of I 61.00 lakhs for the year ended on 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: t 21.83 lakhs)

d) Refer note43(8.2) forthe maturity profile of lease lrability

(Thrs space has been intentionally left blank)
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42.

A

Venus lndia Asset-Flnancr Prlvate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in ( lacs, unless stated othemise)

41. Capital

The Company maintarns an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the Resere Bank of I ndia (RBl )

of lndra. The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBl.

The Company has complied in full with all its externally rmposed capital requirements over the reported period.

41.1 Capltal manaSement

The capital management objectives of the Company are:

- to ensure that the company complies with externally imposed capital requrrements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios

- to ensure the ability to continue as a gorng concern

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders

the Company's various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to rt in the light of chan8es in economic conditions and the risk

to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Partlculars As at

31 March 2025

As at

31 March 2024

Net debtr
Total equitv

4,922.a7

22,817.67

2,999.21

21,327.74

Dcbt Eouitv Ratio o.22 0.14

rNet debt includes debt securities and borrowings (other than debt securities) except lease liability.

No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board

Flnancial assets and llabilities

The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as follows

Fair value hicrarchy

based on the obseruability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Thc category used ar. as follows:
Lcvel 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) rn for identical instruments in active marketsj

Lcvcl 2: Directly (i-e. as prices) or indirectly (1e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

Level 3: lnputs which are not based on obseruable market data (unobseruable inputs)

8.1 Flnancial as€ts and llabilities measur.d at fair value ' recurrlng fair valuc measurcmenB:

L.
):
t-) w

Particulars Note
As at

31 March 2025

As at

31 March 2024

Flnancial assets measured at falr value

lnvestments measured at fair value through profit and loss

Loans measured at fair value through profit and loss

Financial asscts measured at amortlsed cost

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Other Bank Balances

Loansd

lnvestments

Other Financial Assets

Note-8

Note-7

Note-5

Note-6

Note-7

Note-8

Note-9

3,416.55

40.81

395.46

23,899.27

t2.87

1,836.68

48.51

307.00

22,932.71

159.84

Total financial assets 27,761.96 25,284.8L

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Trade payables

Borrowings (other than Debt Securities)

Other Financral Liabilities#

Note-15

Note-16

Note-17 and Note-7

9.15

5,122.75

14.08

64.95

3,233.56
42.53

Total fi nancial llabilltles 5,145.98 3,341.13

Period Level 1 Level 2 Level 3Particulars

31. March 2025

31 March 2024

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

3,416.55

1,836.68

lnvestmlnts at fair value through profit and loss

Assrts

Loans

Mutual funds

Ncw Delt{G



8.2 Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost

Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are calculated using Level 3 inputs:

assets and liabilities:

rate that reflects the issuer's borrowin8 rate as at the end of the reportrnB period.

estimate of their fair value as these are sublect to changes in underlyint interest rate rndices as and when the changes happen.

f Financial Asset measured at FWPL has been shown at Gross amount and corresponding advance has been shown as Other financial liabilitY

(fhis spoce hos been intentionolly left blonk)

el f
.li

::q{:LL:r

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Carrying value Fair value Caruinr valuc Fair valuc

Financial assets:

Cash and Cash EquiYalents

Other Bank Balances

Loansf

lnvestments in debt securities

Other Financial Assets

40.81

395.45

23,a99.27

72.81

40.81

395.46

23,899.27

12.81

48.51

307.00

22,932.77

159.84

48.51

307.00
1) Oaa 71

159.84

Total financial assets 2434a.41 24,348.4L 23,44a.13 23,448.13

Flnanclal liabilltles:
Trade payables

Borrowings (other than Debt Securities)

Other Financial Lrabilities#

9.15

5,122.75

14.08

9.15

5,1,22.15

14.08

64.95

3,233.66

42.53

54.95

3,233.65

42.53

Total fl nancial liabilities 5,145.98 5,145.98 3,341.13 3,341.13

Ncw Oohl



R l.I Measurament lManalement
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other

than @sh and csh equivalents, loans,

investments and other financial assets

Expeded credit loss analysis Itnsuilng adequate securrrycover rn lendrn&

ldivers'lied and hrBh qualrty rnvestment of

lsurplus lunds, Prudent sccloral, counlel-party
land oth€r relevant mnfolrc limits

I

Liquidity risk Debt securities, borrowrnB (other than debt

securities) and other liabilities

Rolling cash flow forecsts I MaintainrnB adequate cash reserves and

I undrawn (redrt facilities. bv contrnuouslv

lrcnitoring lorecast and actual cash flows, and

lby mat(hrng lhe maturity profile5 of linancial

lassets 
and liabilrtres.

Market risk - interest rate EorrowinBs at variable rates Senritivity analysis lAdequately managrng rates of lendinS and

lensur,ng they dynamrcally reflect changes rn

lcosts

Market risk - secunty price lnvestments in mutual funds Sensitivity analysis lPorttolio 
diversifrctron wilh lfius on stralcSrc

linvestments

Venus lndla A$Gt-Flnancc PrlEtc lJmltcd

Summary ofslgnlfi6nt a@untlng pollclcs.nd othcr.rplan.tory notcs for thc ycar end.d 31 M.rch 2025

lAllamdnts arr ln t laa, unlcs statcd othcmlc)

49. tlnarclal rlsl mahalcrent

l) Rlsk M.n.!.mrnt

impact in the financial statements.

A) Credlt rltk

CofrEny to assess the ptential loss as a result ofthe risk to which it is exFed and take corredive actions-

a) Credtt rlrk mnaicmnt
The Company asseses and manages credit ri5k based on internal credit ratinS system and external ratinSs.

From credit risk perspeclive, the Company's lending rciltolio can tE seSreSated into followrn8 brcd cateSoriesl

(i) tow credit risk

(ii) Moderate credit risk

(iii) High credit risk

credit loss based on the

Natu,c fletccmrcd
Low credit risk lCash and cash equivalents. othel bank balances, invellments, lans and

lother financial a5iels

12 month erpeded credit loss

Moderate credt risk fLoans, i*rtments in debt lecurities and other financial M Life time expected credit loss or 12 month erpected credI loss

Hr8h credit risk Itmns, investments in debt securities and other finffiialasets Life time expected credrt loss or fully provrded for

Panlcularr
At at

31 M..ch 2025

As al
31 March 2021

Low dldlt rlsl
Cash and cash equivalents

Oth€r Bank Balances

Loans'

Other financial asets

Modcratc qcdh rlsk

Loans'

lnvestments'+

Hlah qcdtt rtrk
Loans'

40.81

395.45

23,899.21

1.7.A1

48.51

307.m

22,932.71

3,856.52

159.84

7,791 32

Flhahcl.l

' These represent Sross carrying yalues of financial assets, without deduction for erpected credit losses

" This des not include investments in mutual funds as they are carried FVTPI.

c.sh .nd 6sh.qulElchts.nd b.nl depGlts

L6ns

receivables that become past due and als where we witness any deterioration in performance ofthe stor or counterpady.

The major Suidelines for selection of the client includes:

- Ensuring all XYC requirements are fulfilled and al$ after Compnay have run the nsessary reputational checrs and risk analysas

- The client's lncome and indebtness levels

- Clientsofrations, past record and abilityto service the loan on an onSoinS tEsis. Analysts ofthe collateral includinS stressteslnSofvalue

client. The credit bureau ratinB / repod helps the Company 
'n 

identifying client with @r repayment histories and multiple loans.

that become past due and also where we witness any deterioration rn performance ofthe sector or counterpady. I

U
Othcr fihahclal asts mcasurcd at amortlrad @t

continuously, NorDefitl

lFrm.nr...lrlnc fr.m

nr<ir 
^f 

.!ld.d ...dn l6s

Y



bl l) Erpcdcd Crcdlt Loss lEcL) lor lln.ncl.l as.ts othrr th.n l@hs .nd lhEstm.nt lh debt s.curhles
ComFny provides lor expected credit losses on financial assets other than l@ns by assessinB individual financial instruments for expedation o[any credit losses:

initial reco8nition and provide for lifetime exrEcted credit lGses upon signifiGnt increase ln credit risk.

3l March 2025
Estlmated gro$

errYn! amount at
dcfauh

&p.ct.d ptob.blllty &pccted crcdlt
logs

C.rrylnt alMnt {nct
of lmp.lrrcnl

ofd.rauh

Cash and cash equivalents

Other Bank Ealances

Staff loan

Other financial assets

40.81

395.46

16.24

12.81

@6

gn

M

40.81

395 46

16.)4

L2.87

31 Medr m24
Estlm.t.d Sros

6rryn8 arcunt.t
d.f.ult

Erp.ct.d pro,bablllty

of dcfeuh
Erpcdcd ocdlt

logr

C.,rylnt all@ht (hct
ot lmp.lrrcnt

Eovlslonl
cash and cash equivalents

Other Banl Balances

staff loan

Other financial assets

48.51

307.m

20.38

159.84

48.51

307.m

20.38

159.84

GA

EA
go

ll) Erp.ctrd cr.dit 16 for l@ns ahd lnEdmnt ln d€h Edrltlcs'
Ior risk management reporting purpo*s, the Company considers and consolidates followinB elements o[credit risk:

impad all credilsensitive transadions, includinS lGns and securrties.

analysis of sedoral expoJures.

'These discbsures des Mt include stofi l@ns

A.! Crcdlt rlsk rcasur.mnt

OuanthatlE factors
- Debt/ EBITDA

'Return on Capital Employed

- DebV Net Wodh

' lnterest CoveraBe

Gsh lnterest Coverage

Committee. The evaluation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is undenaken by an independent a8ency.

ComFny's extends loan maiorily in wholesale Finance wth very limited erposure in Retail Finance.

.. WholGelc tln.na

and assigns credit ratinB. The proxy ratinB score model takes into consideration combination of followinE quantitative factors as well as other qualitative parameters.

Qu.lh.tlE factor3
- NeModh caps

- Actual oefault dates, loan restructurinB details

b. Rltall Fln.ne

ratinB was available or calculated.

A.2 ErFctcd cr.dlt 16 measur.h.nt

A.2.1 M.asur.m.ht of ErFctGd Crcdlt LN (Ect)

lnd AS 109 outlines a "three sta8e" model for imFEfment tDsed on chanSes in credit qualitY 5ince initial recognition as summarised below

, ifa significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is mwed to "5ta8e 2" but is not yet deemed to be credit impaired

' lf a financial instrument is credit impaired, it is moved to "Stage 3".

3 criteria have their tCL measured on lifetime basis.

A.2.2 SEnment ln@.e ln Cr.dlt Rl3l (SICR)

Ou.nttt th[ stilrh:

Ouallt tlE c.tt.rla:
a. lnitiation of teSal pr@eedin8s aSainst borrower that may result into si8nificant Bsh outflw
b. Fraud in borrower business

c. Group / Parent company under severe financial stress

(

t'.

I'l€w Delhl
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d Eorrower specrfic severe issues like death etc.

Backstop:

A.2.3 D.f,nltlonofd.hutt

any such period allowed by the company in line with circular issued by the Reserve Bank of lndia.

A.2.il &danatlon of lnNts, a$unptlms and..tlm.tld tEhnlqu€s
Erp€cted credit losses are the discounted product of the probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and lolr Siven default (LGDl, defined as lollows:

PD represents the likelihood ofthe borrowerdefaultingon itsobli8ation eitherover next 12 monthsorover the remaininS lifetime ofthe instrurent.
EAD represents the arcunts, including the principal outstanding and interest accrued that the Company expects to be Ned at the time of default.

asset, or Stage 2 or even StaSe 3. However, it varies by type of borrower, availability of collateral or other credit supfDrt.

DGt.rhlh.tloh of kob.biltq of Dcfauh lP0)

a. Whol8.l. lens

lransition matrix was enraplated to arrive at the lfetime probability ofdefault ofvarious ratinSSrades by loan tenure / maturity profrle.

b. R.t.lllehs

MSME pulse repod and has considered it as the ba* to arive at PD for business loan.

- L6! glwn d.fauh (LGo)Mput uon modcl

a, Wholesl€ Lqn!

loans.

recoverability.

dGUmentation quality of collateral, marketability and price volatilitY of collateral, etc.

b. Rct llLen.

A.2.5 l(.y a.rumptlon. u$d lh masu,emcnt of ECI
, The Company considers the date of initial recoSnition as the base date from which siSnificant rncrease in credit risk is determined.

- Since the Company has a riSht to 6ncel any sanctioned but undrawn limits to any of its borrowers, EAD is assumed to be outstandrnB balance as at lhe reportinS date.

- Turnover Cap and Parent suppoft is considered for assiSning final ratinBs.

A.2.6 Fw.rd l@klng lhfotm.tlon ln@rpor.trd lh ECL mod.ls

state of lndian economy and Stress Case kenario which depicts downturn of lndian EconomY.

4.3 Coll.t.ral and oth.r cr.dlt.nh.nemchts

acceptability of 5Ecific clas*s of collateral or credit risk mitisatDn. The principal collateral types for loans and advances are;

- MoilSage of lmmovable properties

Hypothe@tion of Moveable proFrty
- Pied8e of rnstruments throuth which promoters' contribution is infused in the projed

Pledge of promoters' shareholding

- Mortgage of receivables

A.,t L6s allomne
The loss allowance reco8nired in the period is impacted by a variety of factors, as describ€d below:

'step up'(or'step down') between 12-month and Lifetime ECL

- AdditDnal allowan€es for new financial instruments recoSnrsed during the period, as well as releases for financial instrumentl de-recoSnised in the Friod
, lmpact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs, Exposure at defaults (EAD5) and l-GDs in the period, arisinB Irom regular refreshinS of lnputs to models

- financial assets derecognised durinS the period and write{ffs of allowances relatd to assets that were wfifien offdurinS the Friod

The following tables explain the changes in the loss allowance b€tween the

Transfer to 12 months ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECLcredit rmpaired

Addition / Reduction in provision due to change in LGD/PD

lmpairment (Bain) / Lo$ on purcha*d credit impaired as*t
New Financial as*ts oriSinated or purchased

0erecognition of Financial Assets

to 12 months ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit impaired

Transfer to [ifetime ECLcredit impaired

Addition / Reduction in provision due to chanSe in LG0/PD

lmpairment (Bain) / toss on purcharcd credit imperred asset

New Frnancial as*ts oriSinated or purchased

DersoSnition of Financial Assets

( a

POCtStaft I Stare 2 Stare 3
tlLtlme ECL ut tlm ECI- Total12 months ECL Ufctlmc ECL

Cost
306.51 1.i157.53 1,7€4,.L22023

(47.s0)

49.95 178.4E

137.2,!'

(1s7.60)

128.53

131.29

(110 l0)

a67 72 1.460.()8 1.922.4

(49.79)

(108.01)

11,791.12)

333.31

562.50

333.31
(49.7e)

aS/1./r9

(r"793.32)

s6, s7 atr.sw.12

i,lew Delhi

70)a



Transfer to 12 months ECt

Transfer to life time ECL not credit impaired
Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired

Addition / Reduction in provisron due to chanSe in LGD/PD

New Financial ascts oriSinated or purchased

Derecognrtion of Financial Assets

lnterest income on POCI

credit ired asset

Balan@ as at 31 2021
Transfer to 12 months [CL

Transfer to life time ECI- not credit impaired

Transfer to Lifetime ECI credit impaired
Addition / Reduction in provision due to €hange in LGD/PD

New Financial asets oriSinated or purchased

DersoSnition of Financral Assets

lnterest income on POCI

nincludes financial assets that have been derecoSnised either fully or panly

A.5 Dctrlls of st.tr wls! .tpoturr ahd lmp.lrm.nt lo$ .lldahe

Credit impaired l@n assets (De[ault event triS8ered) (Stage lll)

Loan assets havinS siSnifcnt increase in credit nsk (staBe ll)

Other loan assets (Sta8e l)

A.6 Clnantratlon ofcr.dlt rlsl

The comcnv monitors concentration ofcredd risk of in whi.h th. brrower o@rates. fudher bifurcated into tvr of oroduct. whether wholesle or

Stirc 1 Sb.a 2 Strc. E POCt

12 mohths Ecl- Ufetlm. ECL Llfctlm. ECL Utetimc ECt Tobl
1A?mS 1,ta8.31 z).588.95

7,313.33

(4,894.89) (ss.m)
7,313.33

(,1,989.89)

21.119.(B 1.793.31 22,972.39

2,250.00

(1,793.31)

12,r55.r3

{16,468.25)

15,205.13

114,614.94)

2r.6,9.74 2.250.m 23,899.27

k at 31 M..ch 202/tAs at 31 March 2025

Ercurc CIBUTG lmEhmantalldahe

562 57

304.42

2,250.m

21.,U9.28

1,793.31

21,119.09

1,4@.08

462.22

23.89!'.28 t66.99 22,9L2.4 1,922.30

As .t
31 M.rch 2025

Ai .t
31 M.rch 202i1

Concntratlon by lndustty
ABriculture
Pharmaceuticals

Coosumer Discretionary

Consumer F@ds

Diversified

Edu@tion

Financial Services

lI Services

ManufadurinS

Airpod lnfrastructure

ConBlomerate

Consultancy & Advisory

Real Estate

wind Energy

Trading

WarehousinB and Lo8i5tcs

2,836.1s

6,U3.54

50.m

't,161 .97

129.30

4,818 97

r23 M
1,349.62

2,487.28

1,243.64

1,989.83

1,125.91

2,m0.m
5,755.21

2,488 10

2,955.m 2,9U.14

23,90S.91 22,9r2.N

Conentr.tlon by dErrhlp
Corporate
Retail

23,905.91 22,912.40

23,90S.91 22,9L2.&

A.7 Wrh. off pollcy

B) uquldtty rl5l

comFny's liqurdily psition and cash and cash equrvalents on the basis of erpected @sh flows

8.1

31 M.rdr 2025 Le$ than 1 yaar 1-5FaR Mora than S Eari Total

Cash and cash equivalents

Other bank balarcel

Loans excludinS Staff Loans

lnvestment in debt *curities
lnvestment in mutual funds

Othcr finen.ial e(stq

40.81

395 46

16,984.43 6,898.60

,(,.81

395.i.5

23,883.03

3,416 55

1.2.87

3,,116.55

17.e7 ,.3(j,'

l-, ct:;' ,--- I

w
B.2 M.turltlcsoffln.hcl.lllablllurs

\r{

l{c$, Dohl

lmEl.lmhl .lloEho

Cash and @rh equivalents 48.51 €51
Other bank balances 307.m !lO7'@

Lcns excluding Staff Loans l'6,744.91 5,157 4a 22,912.:l!,

lnvestment in debl securilres

lnvestment in mutual funds 1,836.68 1,t35.6t

Other financial as*ts 159 84 - 159.84

Total 19,096.9,a 6,167.4t - 25,26t.'13



31 March. 2025 L.ss than 1 E.r 1 - 5 yca,s Morr th.n 5 Ea6 Total

Trade payables

Borrowings (other than debt securities)

Lease liability

9.15

4,922.a1

42.29

9.15
1,922.A7

199.87157.58

Other Iinancial liabilities 14.08 1'l.G
Total 4,948.38 1S7.Sa - 5,1'15 98

31 Ma.ch. 202,4 L.s thah 1 Ear 1-5Fe6 Tobl
88.35

2,999.21

55.60

19.12

178.19

2,9!8.27
23,1.3:l

19.12

88.36Trade payables

Borrowin8s (other than debt securities)

tease liability

Other financial liabilities

Tdal 3 162 33 174.79

C) Markct rlsk

a. lntlrest rata ahk

0 Lt.btltfl.r

through loans and bank borowrnSs at variable tnterest rates.

lnterest rote ti'k expuurc

r 341-1e

BFlow i< rhe overall to

variable rate
1,922 87

3,0@.00 2,999.27

L922.a7 )w77

Sensitivily

Below is the orofit or losl and 4uitv chanSe5 in interest rates.
31 March 2o2S 3l March )o)t

Padlculars

lnterest sensitivity'

lnterest rates - increase by 1OO basis pints (31 March 2022 1m bps)
(19.23)

19.23
lnterest rates - decrease bv lm basis rcints 131 March 2022: lm bps)

' HoldinS all other variables constant

ll) Asicts

the Iuture @5h flows will ffuctuate tccause ofa chan8e in market interest rates'

b. Prlc. rl3k

Exp6ute
fhe Company is expoed to price risk in respect oI itl investment in mutual funds. The mutual funds are quoted investments.

Sensitivify
gelow is the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity to chan8es in fatr vatue of investments, assuming no change in other variables: -- ----- ---- -- ----- ---

Price sensitivrty

Price increase by 5%
170.83 91 83

(This spoce hos been ntenti@olly lefi blonk) s
G Ncw Dohl

lt
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V.nus lndia Assct-Financc Privatc Limited

Summary of signifient accountlng policics and othcr cxplandorY notes fd thc year ?ndcd 31 Mardr 2025

(Al amonts are ln { la6, unhs statcd othcruisc)

46. Disdosurc il rcquired undcr Mastcr Oircctid -Rcseruc 8ilk of lndia (Non-Eanking Financial Company - Scalc Biled Regulation) Dlrediqs, 2023 dated Octobcr 19, 2023:

Uabilitlcs sidc
(1) dalbd lnclu3ivc

Assets sidc
(2) and recrlvablc ln3

r This includes term loans (including interest accrued) and investment in debt securties (including interest accrued).

r1 Security deposit and prepaid expenses have not been included above

(3) asts othars Gct

(4) Ercak of

As at

31 March 2025

As al

31 March 2024

a. Securedt

b. Unsecured "

23,883.03

1,6.24

22,912.40

20.38

$
$

Particulars Ai at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 202/t

Amdnt Outstandint Amount ovcrduc Ament OutstandinE Amdnt Ovcrduc

a. Debentures:
- secured

Unsecured (other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)

b.

c.

d.

e.

t.

Deferred credits

Term loans

lnter corporate loans and borrowing

Commercial paper

Public deposits

others {loan reoavble on demand from banks and others)

3,000.00

7,922.87

2,999.27

As As

a. Financial lease

b. Operating lease

ir. Stock on hire including hire charges under Sundry debtors

a. Assets on hire

b. Repossessed assets

ri. Other loans counting towards AFC activlties

a. Loans where assets have been repossessed

than above

Leased assets including lease rentals under Sundry debtors

31 March

A6

31 March

As

Currcnt lnvestmcnts

Unouoted

a. Shares: (a) EquitY

(b) Preference

b. Debentures and bonds

c. Units of mutual funds

d. Government S€curities

e. Non-convertible debentures (net)

Quoted
a. Shares: {a) Equity

(b) Preference

b. Debentures and bonds

a. Units of mutual funds

d. Government Securities

e. Others

Unquoted

a. Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference

b. Debentures and bonds
c. Units of mutual funds

d. Government S€curities

e. Non-convertrble debentures (net)

lnvcstmcnts:

Quoted
a. Shares: {a) EquitY

(b) Preference

b. Debentures and bonds

c. Units of mutual funds

d. Government Securities

e. Others

t{ew Dehl
C:I

spoce hos been intentionolly lelt blonk)

(i



Venus lndia Aset-Flnance Private Umited

Summary of signiflcant xcountlnS policies and other explanatorY not6 for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amunts are ln t lc, unls stated othryire)

'Thrs inctudes loan assets (including interest accrued) and investment rn debt s(urties (includrnB interest accrued)

(6)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

v

*
C) lr,

Arl

Amount as at 31 March 202,1 (Gross)'Amunt s at 31 Match 2025 (610$)'
[JnseuredTotal SsuredlJnsuredSecured

Gtegory

20.38 )2,932.7722,912.4016.24 23,899.2723.883.03

Related parties

a. Subsidiaries

b. Companies in the same ErouP
c. Other related parties

ll. Other than related Parties

L

22,977.& 20.3823,ffi.2723.883.03 76.11Total

CateSory As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 202,1

Market Elue / &eak
up of fair Elue tr t{AV

Book Elue
( Net of provisions)

Market nlue / &eak
up of fair value or llAV

Bmk value
( Net of provisions)

l. Related parties

a. Subsidraries

b. Companies in the same grouP

c Other related parties

ll. Other than related Parties
3.416.55 3,393.92 1,836.68 1,813.20

3.it15.55 3,393.92 1,836.68 1,813.20

31 MErch

Astu
31

Partlculars

1,)93.32

333.241,687.43

2,250.00

Gross Non Derforming assets

a. Related parties

b. Other than related panies

Net Non performinS assets

a. Related parties

b. Other than related Parties

(i)

NowDohl

22,912.77



summryof ilnnem.@nthg polkhr.nd dhar atpLmb.y Mas fortha F.r.ndcd 3l Maaah 2025
(All .m!hB.rc lh I L6, uhs frt.d oth.dkr)

CohPiy -S..h B.ed R.guLtbnl Ok dbns, 2OZl d.tcd Odob.r 19, 2023 r.d wtth RBI clEuL, RB|201S2O/88, DOR.NBFC (P0) CC t{o.loZc}.10.mv201}m, d.Ed t{d oil, 2019

SignifEant counterparty ir as defined in RBI circular RBI/2019-

# Total liabilhies excludas Net rcnh of the company

CC No.102/03.10.mU2019'20, dated Noremher 04, 2019

{ll) Top 20 hrt. d.postts (.ruht lh ( cror..nd I ot tel d.p6tts)

defined in RBI circular Rgl/2019'20/88,DOR,NBFC daled Nwember04,2019.

fl Toral Liabiliiies excludes Net rcnh o, lhe (ompanY

(v) Stdl R.tb.
{a) Commrcial Ff ro as a % of total public f unds, tolal lbbililiet ard total Assets

(b) Non-convenibte debentures (original rorurity oI lets rhan one year) a5 a % oflotal publk fund5, lotal liabilhies and lotel assets

(c) and tolal

'Toral Lbbilitier excludes Net wodh of lh€ comFny

"Olhr Shon lerm Lbbilfrhs repreents BorrowinBr maturinS w(h one Year

(V) ln$hulloolsct{pfor llquldltY rhk mE8cmil

dfections in terms of interest rates and lklurdity

- R.sre g.nk d tndL lt{on-g.nld{ flmncLlcohp.ny-k h B.sd n SuLtbn} oledlon , m}} d.t.d octob.T 19, 2023

P.dkuLG for thc F.randln8
lkl M.rch. 2025

tor lhr FrrctdlrX 3ld
Mr..h rc21

11 23

B.nllrt FlEftLl Cohp.ny -S..lG B.*d n!6uLtbn) DlrdbE, 2oal d.tcd (ktoba 19. 2023 :

for tha lEar Gndlng
?1dU.rh 2orq

Direct

by rcdSages on rerijcntialprorrtY that is or b. dcupied by the bororer or thal i5 renled- [xrcsure .l5o rftlude non fund based {NtB) limhs.

4,492.16 1219.83

Real En.le -
secured mdSaSes real estates (office buildrnSs, retail 5pace, multipurFse premi5er, rerdenlial buildings, muhi tenanted

premises, industrial space, holels, land acquig[rcn, development and etc.). ExFsure sh.ll als include based limitt

3,926.O5 2.801.67

lnveilmnts in ModgaSe and

wurilised

Commercbl

B. lndkecr [xrcsure
expsures on Nalional

Housing Benkand

r6bl Flm<uE ro R.rl kt.t. 9dd 12.418.21 10,081.51

Nil

Nil

() '---q?-'

2

S-No.
48.

2

3

t{Gf,rDchl

A

"c)

:--



8.nklm Fln.ELl Cohp.ny-Sc.h B.s.d RcSuhflonl OlrccfloN, 2OZt d.tcd Octob..19, 2023 :

F.nk!hR forthc yG....dlng
31st M:.ch, 2025

torth. F.r.ndlh8 31n
M.rch, 202,1

Direcl invettmnt in equrtyshares, coilenible bonds, conenible debentures and unirs of equiy oriented mutualfunds the coprs of *hEh is ml erctusively inwn.d ;;@;G d;b;

debentures, and unnr ofequity orienred mutual funds

Advanc.5 for anyother purrcses wher€ shar.s or convenible bondsor coruedible debentures or unitsofequrty oriented mutualfunds are lak.n as primry recurhy

2,942.33 5,351.55
Advances for any oth€r purrses lo th€ enent *(ured by the collateral security of shares or convedible bondr or convenible debenturei or unhs ofequity oriented mutual funds i.e
where th€ primry ecurityotherlhan shares/ conwdibh bondr/convenibl€ debentures/units of equityoriented mut@l funds des rct fulV cover the advances

S€cured and unsecured advances to slGkbrolers and Suanntees isru.d on b€halfof 5l@kbrokers and rurket makers

Loans sanctioned lo corrcrates aSarnst lhe c.urity of shares / bonds / detEntureg or other ecurhies or on alean basis for reeting promte/r conlribubn to lhe equity ot nes
companies in anlicrpatbn of rairinB resources

Eridge bans locomFnies againil exfcted equity flows / issues

Undeeriting commil mnls taken up by the NBFCs in rerFct of primary isiue of shares or conwnible bond! or convenible debemures or unis of equity oriented mdul funds

FimncirE to stekbrokers for rorBin tndinS

All exposures lo Ahernalile lnveilmnt tunds:

Cate8ory I

CateSory ll

CaleSory lll

f&l a&oturc to eplulmrtct
2,9.4233 6,361.55

U

*() ('

4

t{€vrOshl



c.t.aorhs

fdth. rc...ndim 3li M.r.h. 2025

rorat trpsuro (lrcuacs o I

babncc shcct ard off-b.Lnccl
sh..t lrposur.) 

I

GrN l{Pl6
P.r@nut. of Grc flPAr to

Tdal ErD6urc
(lBlud.s on b.hE.
sh..t .nd off-b.LE

shaat arposurc)

Gr6 llP^r
P..c.nu8c ofGrc$ NPtu b

I

1) Aaricuhure and Allhd Acttu(ps ol C 0 0 0 0

)l lnA"(rtu 0

3)Seryices I

Commrcial Real tstate 5,755 21 | o-wa 1,125.91 r,793 31 25.11./

NBt' 6,643.54 | 2,2S0 m 11.87% 4,a1a.9')

2.96s.m I 2.9U 74 0.0c8

- Othets 8.542.15 I o.w o.w
I

4) Personal Loan5 OI 0 0

I

5) Others ol 0 0

23.96.91 I 2.250.m 72,972.@

fln.nchl Comp.ny-S..h 8.cd R.fuLtbn) DlrcdloB, 2023 d.Ed odob., 19. 2023 :

Fln.mhl cohp.rry-sc.h B.sd R.luLtbnl Dlcdlont 2023 d.Ed (ktob.r 19, 2023 :

lndL (iloh-B.hllrg FldELl Cohp.rry-S..L B.ed n4ubtton) olndlons, m23 d.t.d Odob.r 19,2023:

nol 8tuen.

S,a publk dtslGue on CmpLtnB r.crhld by th. tlBtG fiom cudomB .nd flm thc Oflc!! ol Ombudsmn fo.lh. tE.r.ridcd on M., 31, 2025 .5 cqulrd und.r RBI Clruhr Rgl/DoR./2021-2'U106

DoR.Flt{,REC.No.4S/(B.10.U92O23-2,1M.st.r Dlrcdlon- R.s.re B.nkof lndL (N*8.ntlil Fln.mhl Comp.ny-Sc.lc B.*d R.gul.lbn)olrdloN, 2023 d.tcd Odob.r 19,2021 :

1.) Numb€r 0 0

2 ) Number of complarnls received durin8 the year 3

complaints recetued by lhe NBtCs from office olOmbudsman

3.1) Of which,

Number

complaintt

the end of the

0 0
5.) Number o, ruintainable complainls receiled by lhe NBFC

from of{ice of 0mbudsman

0
5.1) Of5, numb€r ofcomplaints resotwd in favour ofthe
NBtc til offi.e of Ombudsman 0

0

5.2) Of5, number oI complaints resolved throuSh

conciliarion/rediariodadvisorbs issued by office of

Ombudsman 0

0

5.3) of5, number ofcomplainls resofued after parsirE of
Awards by office ofOmbudsman a8ain( lhe NBFC 0

0 0
5.)Numberof Aw.rds unimphmnted within lhe stipulated

tim (other lhan those apFaled)

Numb€r of comphints Numb€r of complaints receiled

during the year

% increase/decrear in the

number of comphints receivcd

Numb€r ofcompla Number ofcomplaints

Fndin8 beyond 30Grounds oI complaints, (i.e. complaints relatin8 to)
ai rhe b€Sinning of lh year

Fndin8.r rhe end of

the

ol c 0 c

Ground '3 0l c c

Ground'4 ol c 0 0 C

ol -l00A 0 c

0l 0 0 c

Total ol 2 -1ocPt 0

I

Ground'1
Ground - 2

Ground - 3

----------------! 0

0 0

Ground - 4 ol 0 c 0

Ground - 5 ol 3 61"t 0 0

Others ol C 0 0

0

(This swce lfrs been intentaMlly lclt blonk)
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Venus lndia fuset-Finance Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in t lacs, unless stated otherwise)

56. Contingent liabilities

As at reporting date, the company does not have any contingent liabilities, to the extent not provided for

57. PendingLitigations

The company is subject lo legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The company's management does not reasonably
expect that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the
company's results of operatlons or financial condition.

58. Ereviousyearfrgureshavebeenregroupedandreclassifiedwherevernecessarytoconformtothecurrentyear'sclassification.

59. Balanceofdebtors/creditorandotherreceivables/payablesaresubjecttoconfirmation.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chaturvedi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Venus lndia Asset-Finance Private Limited
lCAl Firm Registration No.: 302137E/E300286

Pankaj

Pa rtner CEO cum Director

DIN No.03551618Membership No.: 091239

UDIN:

w
Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025

Director

DIN No. 00076111.

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025

Place: New Delhi

Date:27 June 2025

a/7
Shweta Garg

Company Secretary

Membership No. A34258

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27 June 2025
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